
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, April 7, 2025 7:00 PM 

Cologne Community Center, 1211 Village Parkway 

Vision Statement 
The City of Cologne is a vibrant small town that respects its heritage, embraces 

its future and offers a high quality of life for all who live, work and visit our 
community. 

                      Mayor:    Matt Lein 
          Councilmember:     Sarah Bruss 
          Councilmember:     Jeri Bowers 
          Councilmember:     Selmer Olson 
          Councilmember:     Carol Szaroletta 

 
NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE ACCORDING TO LENGTH OF DISCUSSION. TO 
ENSURE THAT YOU ARE PRESENT FOR ITEMS OF INTEREST, PLEASE ARRIVE AT 7:00 PM. 
 
 
 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ROLL CALL   

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 
4. VISITOR’S PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS, CORRESPONDENCE 

 
5. ADOPT CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed below are considered routine and non-controversial by the Council. There will 
be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Councilmember, Staff or 
Citizen. If removed, the item will be discussed at the end of the regular agenda. 

 



a. March 17, 2025 City Council Minutes 
b. Accounts Payable from March 18, 2025 
c. March 25th and April 8, 2025 Payroll Summary 
d. Approve Contract with Upper Midwest Athletic Construction 

for Meadow Park Basketball Court Resurfacing 
e. Approve Renewal of Annual Haulers License for Republic 

Services, Suburban Waste and Waste Management 
f. Approve Cologne Lions Gambling Permit for 52 Club Raffle 
g. Approve Annual Liquor License Renewal for Cologne Corral 

and Inn Town Wine and Spirits 
h. Approve Resolution 25-09 Accepting Donation 

 
6. NEW COUNCIL BUSINESS 

a. CFD Fire Chief Chad Vos – Add T12 to Fleet 
b.  North Tower Bid Approval 
c. Employee Manual Update 
d. 2024 Audit Presentation 

 
7. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

a. Administrator Update 
b. Council / Mayor Reports 

 
8. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 
9.  ADJOURN 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS/MEETINGS 
  
April 21st    Monday   City Council Meeting 
April 25th   Friday   Tanker 12 Push In Ceremony 
April 26th   Saturday  CFD Steak Fry 

 



 

City Council Meeting Minutes 
Monday, March 17, 2025 7:00 PM 

Cologne Community Center, 1211 Village Parkway 

Vision Statement 
The City of Cologne is a vibrant small town that respects its heritage, embraces 

its future and offers a high quality of life for all who live, work and visit our 
community. 

                      Mayor:    Matt Lein 
          Councilmember:     Sarah Bruss 
          Councilmember:     Jeri Bowers 
          Councilmember:     Selmer Olson 
          Councilmember:     Carol Szaroletta 

 
NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE ACCORDING TO LENGTH OF DISCUSSION. TO 
ENSURE THAT YOU ARE PRESENT FOR ITEMS OF INTEREST, PLEASE ARRIVE AT 7:00 PM. 

 
 
 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ROLL CALL   

 
Mayor Lein called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Councilmembers Bowers, Bruss, 
Olson and Szaroletta were present.  Also present was City Administrator Michelle 
Morrison. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 

Motion by Councilmember Bruss to adopt the agenda, second by Councilmember 
Bowers.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. VISITOR’S PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS, CORRESPONDENCE 



 
5. ADOPT CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed below are considered routine and non-controversial by the Council. There will 
be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Councilmember, Staff or 
Citizen. If removed, the item will be discussed at the end of the regular agenda. 

 

a. March 3, 2025 City Council Minutes 
b. Accounts Payable from March 4, 2025 
c. March 11th, 2025 Payroll Summary 
d. Resolution 25-08 Accepting Donation 

 
After discussion, Councilmember Szaroletta made a motion to adopt the consent 
agenda, second by Councilmember Olson.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
6. NEW COUNCIL BUSINESS 

 
7. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

a. Administrator Update 
b. Sheriff Report 

 
8.  ADJOURN 

Motion by Councilmember Bruss to adjourn at 7:05 PM, second by Councilmember 
Szaroletta.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted:    Attest: 

 

____________________    _______________________ 
Michelle Morrison     Matt Lein 

City Administrator/City Clerk   Mayor 
 

 



*Check Summary Register©

CITY OF COLOGNE 04/02/25 2:54 PM

Page 1

Batch: 

031925XCEL,032525MidCoCo,032525Melchert,032525Loffler,032525MetroNet,032525MVEC,032525ProPet,032525AdamsPest,040725

CR,032525Engel,032525ECM,032525Summit,032525VISA,033125XCEL,040225Grainger,040225PO,040225CenterPoint,040225Broadb

and,040225TechStar,040225AFLAC,040225MVEC,040225NUVERA,040225MidCoCo,040225HAWKINS

Name Check Date Check Amt

10100   Checking

2539e XCEL ENERGY 3/24/2025 $3,302.86 Street Light

2540e MID COUNTY CO-OP 3/25/2025 $171.67 Kerosene

2541e MELCHERT, HUBERT,SJODIN, P 3/25/2025 $187.63 Miscellaneous

2542e LOFFLER-131511 3/25/2025 $50.69 Monthly Copier Lease

2543e METRONET 3/25/2025 $177.41 Phones

2544e MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COOPER 3/25/2025 $125.70 2140 N Village Parkway

2545e PROPET DISTRIBUTORS INC. 3/25/2025 $317.94 DogiPot Litter Bags

2546e ADAM'S PEST CONTROL, INC 3/25/2025 $133.53 Quarterly Maintenance Q1

2547e ENGEL WATER TESTING INC. 3/25/2025 $240.00 Water Analysis

2548e ECM PUBLISHERS, INC. 3/25/2025 $106.00 Resolution No 25-07

2549e SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION 3/25/2025 $419.00 Annual Inspection-Alarms

2550e SECURITY CARD MEMBER SERV 3/25/2025 $3,274.02 Monthly Adobe Subscription

2557e XCEL ENERGY 4/2/2025 $5,799.78 WWTP

2558e GRAINGER 4/2/2025 $145.93 Faucets

2559e POST OFFICE 4/2/2025 $154.00 PO Box annual fee

2560e CENTERPOINT 4/2/2025 $871.36 105 Benton St

2561e BROADBAND CORP 4/2/2025 $24.95 WWTP Internet April

2562e TECHSTAR IT SOLUTIONS INC 4/2/2025 $1,192.60  IT Support

2563e AFLAC 4/2/2025 $190.52 Employee Insurance

2564e MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COOPER 4/2/2025 $277.40 Street Light Account

2565e NUVERA COMMUNICATIONS INC 4/2/2025 $131.07 Fitness Center Cable TV

2566e MID COUNTY CO-OP 4/2/2025 $1,083.00 Dyed Fuel Oil

2567e HAWKINS, INC 4/2/2025 $10,453.55 Water Treatment

29267 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 4/7/2025 $698.56 Defib Pads

29268 CARGILL 4/7/2025 $2,778.49 Road Salt

29269 CARVER COUNTY TAXPAYER S 4/7/2025 $2,462.10 40.0135000 Property Tax

29270 CARVER TAX SERVICE 4/7/2025 $125.00 Amendment; Randy Clay taxes

29271 CUSTOMIZED FIRE RESCUE TR 4/7/2025 $800.00 1.20.25 NFPA Fire Alarm Panel; sprinkler syste

29272 EMERGENCY TECHNICAL DECO 4/7/2025 $596.45 Turnout Gear

29273 ANGIE FRITZ 4/7/2025 $100.00 Damage Deposit Refund Event 3.23.25

29274 KAREN GUENTZEL 4/7/2025 $60.00 Damage Deposit Refund; event 3.30.25

29275 HANSON, EMILY 4/7/2025 $100.00 Damage Deposit Refund; Event 3.29.5

29276 SHAYLA HAYES 4/7/2025 $100.00 Damage Deposit Refund Event 3.22.25

29277 DANIEL HERMANN 4/7/2025 $55.00 Snow Removal 3/7/25

29278 Amber Husevold 4/7/2025 $100.00 Damage Deposit Refund; Event 3.30.25

29279 MCINNIS, JENNA 4/7/2025 $206.28

29280 METRO WEST INSPECTION SER 4/7/2025 $1,491.10 Permits Finaled -March 2025

29281 MHSRC/RANGE 4/7/2025 $1,170.00 Class fee; Precision Driving center

29282 OVERLINE & SON, INC. 4/7/2025 $2,936.25 Vactor Services

29283 POST OFFICE 4/7/2025 $2,500.00 Deposit into account for waterbills

29284 Mi-Kong Schmitt 4/7/2025 $100.00 Damage Deposit Refund; Event 3.29.25

29285 Tessa Spenser 4/7/2025 $100.00 Damage Deposit Refund; Event 3.22.25

29286 UTILITY CONSULTANT, INC 4/7/2025 $712.59 Water Testing Feb/March 2025

29287 WACONIA PATRIOT 4/7/2025 $109.80 Subscription 2025-2026

Total Checks $46,132.23



*Check Summary Register©

CITY OF COLOGNE 04/02/25 2:54 PM

Page 2

Batch: 

031925XCEL,032525MidCoCo,032525Melchert,032525Loffler,032525MetroNet,032525MVEC,032525ProPet,032525AdamsPest,040725

CR,032525Engel,032525ECM,032525Summit,032525VISA,033125XCEL,040225Grainger,040225PO,040225CenterPoint,040225Broadb

and,040225TechStar,040225AFLAC,040225MVEC,040225NUVERA,040225MidCoCo,040225HAWKINS

Name Check Date Check Amt

FILTER: (([Act Year]='2025' and [period] in (3,4))) and (Source in 
('031925XCEL','032525MidCoCo','032525Melchert','032525Loffler','032525MetroNet','032525MVEC','032
525ProPet','032525AdamsPest','040725CR','032525Engel','032525ECM','032525Summit','032525VISA','0
33125XCEL','040225Grainger','040225PO','040225CenterPoint','040225Broadband','040225TechStar','04
0225AFLAC','040225MVEC','040225NUVERA','040225MidCoCo','040225HAWKINS'))

____________________________________________                     _________________________

Clerk Treasurer                                                                                                Date



Batch: 

031925XCEL,032525MidCoCo,032525Melchert,032525Loffler,032525MetroNet,032525MVEC,032525ProPet,032525AdamsPest,040725

CR,032525Engel,032525ECM,032525Summit,032525VISA,033125XCEL,040225Grainger,040225PO,040225CenterPoint,040225Broadb

and,040225TechStar,040225AFLAC,040225MVEC,040225NUVERA,040225MidCoCo,040225HAWKINS

Page 1

04/02/25 2:54 PMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

10100   Checking

2539 e 03/24/25 XCEL ENERGY

$1,816.25 Street LightElectric UtilitiesE 101-43160-381

$648.10 Louis HallElectric UtilitiesE 101-42210-381

$9.83 PW Maintenance BldgElectric UtilitiesE 101-41940-381

$154.01 Tennis Courts - Lions ParkElectric UtilitiesE 101-45200-381

$347.80 Public Works FacilityElectric UtilitiesE 101-43100-381

$326.87 Bldg by Water Tower, Water Tower, Well 1&2Electric UtilitiesE 601-49400-381

$3,302.86Total

2540 e 03/25/25 MID COUNTY CO-OP

$35.02 KeroseneMotor Fuels 22162E 101-43100-212

$136.65 Oil-Maxtron 5W40Motor Fuels 2262E 101-43100-212

$171.67Total

2541 e 03/25/25 MELCHERT, HUBERT,SJODIN, PLLP

$118.03 MiscellaneousLegal Fees 178568E 101-41600-304

$69.60 Ordinance EnforcementLegal Fees 49165E 101-41600-304

$187.63Total

2542 e 03/25/25 LOFFLER-131511

$50.69 Monthly Copier LeaseRepairs/Maint Machinery/ 4972180E 101-41400-404

$50.69Total

2543 e 03/25/25 METRONET

$177.41 PhonesCommunications (GENERE 101-43100-320

$177.41Total

2544 e 03/25/25 MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE

$61.71 2140 N Village ParkwayElectric UtilitiesE 602-49470-381

$63.99 2043 Village Parkway LightElectric UtilitiesE 101-43160-381

$125.70Total

2545 e 03/25/25 PROPET DISTRIBUTORS INC.

$317.94 DogiPot Litter BagsMiscellaneous (GENERAL 148320E 101-45200-430

$317.94Total

2546 e 03/25/25 ADAM'S PEST CONTROL, INC

$133.53 Quarterly Maintenance Q1Repairs/Maint Buildings 4061587E 101-45100-401

$133.53Total

2547 e 03/25/25 ENGEL WATER TESTING INC.

$240.00 Water AnalysisAnalysis 25-29115E 601-49400-311

$240.00Total

2548 e 03/25/25 ECM PUBLISHERS, INC.

$106.00 Resolution No 25-07Print/Publications (GENER 1039718E 101-41400-350

$106.00Total

2549 e 03/25/25 SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION

$419.00 Annual Inspection-AlarmsProfessional Srvs (GENE 3057053E 101-45100-300



Batch: 

031925XCEL,032525MidCoCo,032525Melchert,032525Loffler,032525MetroNet,032525MVEC,032525ProPet,032525AdamsPest,040725

CR,032525Engel,032525ECM,032525Summit,032525VISA,033125XCEL,040225Grainger,040225PO,040225CenterPoint,040225Broadb

and,040225TechStar,040225AFLAC,040225MVEC,040225NUVERA,040225MidCoCo,040225HAWKINS

Page 2

04/02/25 2:54 PMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

$419.00Total

2550 e 03/25/25 SECURITY CARD MEMBER SERVICE

$78.00 Monthly Adobe SubscriptionComputer Software/HardwE 101-41400-207

$50.25Repair/Maint Supply (GENE 601-49400-220

$371.67 Mark-Rural Water TrainingTravel/Education ExpenseE 101-41400-331

$68.67 2026 Appointment calendar and labelsOffice Supplies (GENERAE 101-41400-200

$597.19 new phonesComputer Software/HardwE 101-41400-207

$71.88 Toilet paper spindles, pickleball tapeRepair/Maint Supply (GENE 101-45100-220

$14.99 Amazon PrimeDues and SubscriptionsE 101-41400-433

$135.99 Driveway MarkersOperating Supplies (GENEE 101-43100-210

$1,399.98 Water Bottle Filler replacementRepairs/Maint BuildingsE 101-45100-401

$41.24 Furnace Filters ShopRepairs/Maint BuildingsE 101-43100-401

$41.62 Furnace Filters Fire departmentRepairs/Maint BuildingsE 101-42210-401

$402.54 Engine FanRepairs/Maint Machinery/ 45707-1E 101-43100-404

$3,274.02Total

2557 e 04/02/25 XCEL ENERGY

$5,158.62 WWTPElectric UtilitiesE 602-49450-381

$600.99 Lift StationsElectric UtilitiesE 602-49470-381

$40.17 115 PaulElectric UtilitiesE 602-49470-381

$5,799.78Total

2558 e 04/02/25 GRAINGER

$145.93 FaucetsRepairs/Maint Buildings 9444467592E 101-45100-401

$145.93Total

2559 e 04/02/25 POST OFFICE

$154.00 PO Box annual feePostageE 101-41400-322

$154.00Total

2560 e 04/02/25 CENTERPOINT

$17.22 105 Benton StGas UtilitiesE 602-49470-383

$818.46 2224 NaplesGas UtilitiesE 601-48930-383

$19.62 124 Hazelwood Ave LFT STNGas UtilitiesE 602-49470-383

$16.06 1022 Meadow St LFT STNGas UtilitiesE 602-49470-383

$871.36Total

2561 e 04/02/25 BROADBAND CORP

$24.95 WWTP Internet AprilCommunications (GENERE 602-49450-320

$24.95Total

2562 e 04/02/25 TECHSTAR IT SOLUTIONS INC

$298.15  IT SupportContractual Services 70859E 101-43100-312

$298.15  IT SupportOther Professional Service 70859E 101-42200-310

$298.15  IT SupportContractual Services 70859E 602-49450-312

$298.15  IT SupportContractual Services 70859E 101-41400-312

$1,192.60Total

2563 e 04/02/25 AFLAC

$28.88 Employee InsuranceEmployer Paid Ins (GENE 655928E 101-41400-130



Batch: 

031925XCEL,032525MidCoCo,032525Melchert,032525Loffler,032525MetroNet,032525MVEC,032525ProPet,032525AdamsPest,040725

CR,032525Engel,032525ECM,032525Summit,032525VISA,033125XCEL,040225Grainger,040225PO,040225CenterPoint,040225Broadb

and,040225TechStar,040225AFLAC,040225MVEC,040225NUVERA,040225MidCoCo,040225HAWKINS

Page 3

04/02/25 2:54 PMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

$124.74 Employee InsuranceAflac 655928G 101-21705

$18.45 Employee InsuranceEmployer Paid Ins (GENE 655928E 602-49450-130

$18.45 Employee InsuranceEmployer Paid Ins (GENE 655928E 601-49400-130

$190.52Total

2564 e 04/02/25 MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE

$277.40 Street Light AccountElectric UtilitiesE 101-43160-381

$277.40Total

2565 e 04/02/25 NUVERA COMMUNICATIONS INC

$131.07 Fitness Center Cable TVDues and SubscriptionsE 101-45100-433

$131.07Total

2566 e 04/02/25 MID COUNTY CO-OP

$1,083.00 Dyed Fuel OilMotor Fuels 81918E 101-43100-212

$1,083.00Total

2567 e 04/02/25 HAWKINS, INC

$30.00 Water TreatmentChemicals and Chem Pro 7013833E 601-49400-216

$10,423.55 Waste Water Treatment PlantChemicals and Chem Pro 7020788E 602-49450-216

$10,453.55Total

29267 04/07/25 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC

$343.47 Defib PadsOperating Supplies (GENE 85638641E 101-42230-210

$355.09 GlovesOperating Supplies (GENE 85649711E 101-42230-210

$698.56Total

29268 04/07/25 CARGILL

$2,778.49 Road SaltOperating Supplies (GENE 2910817311E 101-43100-210

$2,778.49Total

29269 04/07/25 CARVER COUNTY TAXPAYER SERVICE

$2.00 40.8010430 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 1644338E 101-41940-430

$502.00 40.0500636 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 1652139E 101-41940-430

$18.00 40.4560410 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 1652149E 101-41940-430

$36.00 40.4560350 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 1652341E 101-41940-430

$2.00 40.4560420 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 1652615E 101-41940-430

$2.00 40.4560430 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 1652704E 101-41940-430

$233.14 40.1100490 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 50164342E 101-41940-430

$233.14 40.1100480 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 50164343E 101-41940-430

$1,398.82 40.1110470 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 50164492E 101-41940-430

$35.00 40.0135000 Property TaxMiscellaneous (GENERAL 50165612E 101-41940-430

$2,462.10Total

29270 04/07/25 CARVER TAX SERVICE

$125.00 Amendment; Randy Clay taxesMiscellaneous (GENERALE 101-41400-430

$125.00Total

29271 04/07/25 CUSTOMIZED FIRE RESCUE TRAIN

$800.00 1.20.25 NFPA Fire Alarm Panel; sprinkler systemsTraining and Instruction 2947E 101-42220-208

$800.00Total



Batch: 

031925XCEL,032525MidCoCo,032525Melchert,032525Loffler,032525MetroNet,032525MVEC,032525ProPet,032525AdamsPest,040725

CR,032525Engel,032525ECM,032525Summit,032525VISA,033125XCEL,040225Grainger,040225PO,040225CenterPoint,040225Broadb

and,040225TechStar,040225AFLAC,040225MVEC,040225NUVERA,040225MidCoCo,040225HAWKINS

Page 4

04/02/25 2:54 PMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

29272 04/07/25 EMERGENCY TECHNICAL DECON

$596.45 Turnout GearContractual Services 290E 101-42230-312

$596.45Total

29273 04/07/25 ANGIE FRITZ

$100.00 Damage Deposit Refund Event 3.23.25DepositsG 101-22000

$100.00Total

29274 04/07/25 KAREN GUENTZEL

$60.00 Damage Deposit Refund; event 3.30.25DepositsG 101-22000

$60.00Total

29275 04/07/25 HANSON, EMILY

$100.00 Damage Deposit Refund; Event 3.29.5DepositsG 101-22000

$100.00Total

29276 04/07/25 SHAYLA HAYES

$100.00 Damage Deposit Refund Event 3.22.25DepositsG 101-22000

$100.00Total

29277 04/07/25 DANIEL HERMANN

$55.00 Snow Removal 3/7/25Wages and SalariesE 101-43100-101

$55.00Total

29278 04/07/25 Amber Husevold

$100.00 Damage Deposit Refund; Event 3.30.25DepositsG 101-22000

$100.00Total

29279 04/07/25 MCINNIS, JENNA

$86.25Travel/Education ExpenseE 101-41400-331

$120.03Miscellaneous (GENERALE 101-46200-430

$206.28Total

29280 04/07/25 METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVICES

$1,491.10 Permits Finaled -March 2025Other Professional Service 4516E 101-42400-310

$1,491.10Total

29281 04/07/25 MHSRC/RANGE

$1,170.00 Class fee; Precision Driving centerTraining and Instruction 337900-1164E 101-42220-208

$1,170.00Total

29282 04/07/25 OVERLINE & SON, INC.

$2,936.25 Vactor ServicesContractual Services 1379E 602-49450-312

$2,936.25Total

29283 04/07/25 POST OFFICE

$2,500.00 Deposit into account for waterbillsPostageE 101-41400-322

$2,500.00Total

29284 04/07/25 Mi-Kong Schmitt

$100.00 Damage Deposit Refund; Event 3.29.25DepositsG 101-22000



Batch: 

031925XCEL,032525MidCoCo,032525Melchert,032525Loffler,032525MetroNet,032525MVEC,032525ProPet,032525AdamsPest,040725

CR,032525Engel,032525ECM,032525Summit,032525VISA,033125XCEL,040225Grainger,040225PO,040225CenterPoint,040225Broadb

and,040225TechStar,040225AFLAC,040225MVEC,040225NUVERA,040225MidCoCo,040225HAWKINS

Page 5

04/02/25 2:54 PMCITY OF COLOGNE

*Check Detail Register©

Amount CommentInvoiceCheck # Check Date Vendor Name

$100.00Total

29285 04/07/25 Tessa Spenser

$100.00 Damage Deposit Refund; Event 3.22.25DepositsG 101-22000

$100.00Total

29286 04/07/25 UTILITY CONSULTANT, INC

$712.59 Water Testing Feb/March 2025Analysis 123361E 602-49450-311

$712.59Total

29287 04/07/25 WACONIA PATRIOT

$109.80 Subscription 2025-2026Dues and SubscriptionsE 101-41400-433

$109.80Total

10100 $46,132.23

____________________________________________                     _________________________

Clerk Treasurer                                                                                                Date

Fund Summary

10100  Checking

101 GENERAL FUND $24,319.87

601 WATER FUND $1,484.03

602 SEWER FUND $20,328.33

$46,132.23



Employee  10,775.79$      March 25, 2025 Payroll
IRS 3,921.02$        March 25, 2025 Payroll
MN Department of Revenue 672.47$           March 25, 2025 Payroll
PERA 2,292.69$        March 25, 2025 Payroll
Deferred Compensation 1,258.34$        March 25, 2025 Payroll

 Total 18,920.31$      

City of Cologne Payroll
25-Mar-25



Employee  11,306.11$      April 8, 2025 Payroll
IRS 3,997.01$        April 8, 2025 Payroll
MN Department of Revenue 686.56$           April 8, 2025 Payroll
PERA 2,305.29$        April 8, 2025 Payroll
Deferred Compensation 1,848.11$        April 8, 2025 Payroll
Health Savings Account 575.02$           March 11, 2025 Payroll

 Total 20,718.10$      

City of Cologne Payroll
8-Apr-25



 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

This Construction Contract (“Agreement”) is made and entered into March 19, 2025 (“Effective Date”) by and between 
the City of Cologne, a Minnesota municipal corporation (“Owner”) and Upper Midwest Athletic Construction, Inc., a Minnesota 
corporation (“Contractor”).  Owner and Contractor are at times referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively at the “Parties.”  
 
WHEREAS, Owner is the fee owner of certain real property located at 1305 Benton Creek Avenue, Cologne, MN 55322 and 
commonly known as “Meadow Park” (the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Owner desires that Contractor perform the work described in Exhibit A (“Work”) upon the Property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations hereinafter 
set forth, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Sourcewell. The Parties acknowledge that Contractor utilized cooperative purchasing through Sourcewell Contract #031622-

AST and the applicable Cooperative Purchasing Agreement related thereto.  
2. Construction Work.   

a. The Work.  Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, materials, equipment, tools, machinery, transportation, and other 
facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent, and 
whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.  Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among 
Contractor’s employees and other persons carrying out the Work. Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or 
persons not skilled in tasks assigned to them.  
b. Workmanship; Standards. Contractor shall be responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
procedures and coordination to complete the Work.  Contractor represents and warrants that all Work shall be completed in 
a workmanlike manner equal to or exceeding local industry standards and in conformance with all applicable codes, laws, 
ordinances, and regulations (“Standards”) and that all materials, fixtures and personal property related to the Work will be 
new and of good quality equal to the Standards. 

3. Access to Property. The Contract Price is based upon completion of the Work during normal working hours and Owner 
agrees to provide Contractor clear and continuous access to the Property as required for the Work. Owner will be responsible 
for Contract Price increases if any failure to provide reasonable access interrupts Contractor’s Work or otherwise causes 
Contractor to incur additional costs in its performance of the Work. 

4. Payments 
a. Contract Price. As consideration for the Work, Owner shall pay Contractor $24,948.00 plus any Change Orders and/or 
alternates described in Exhibit A (“Contract Price”) upon Substantial Completion.  
b. Draw Requests.  Contractor shall submit applications for payment (“Draw Requests”) to Owner and Owner shall make 
progress payments to Contractor on account of the Contract Price. Contractor shall submit monthly Draw Requests covering 
the immediately preceding calendar month ending on the last day of the month.  The Draw Request shall set forth the value 
of the Work completed, materials supplied and expenses incurred by Contractor for the Work during the immediately preceding 
payment interval. 
c.  Owner Payments. Owner shall pay Contractor the amount specified in a Draw Request within thirty (30) days after 
receiving the Draw Request and all other required documentation as provided in this Agreement.  Finance charges at the rate 
of eight percent (8%) per annum shall accrue on the amount of any payment that is past due under this Agreement.   
d. Final Payment.  Owner shall make final payment of the full balance of the Contract Price, including any retainage, less 
any Punch List Holdback  (“Final Payment”) within fifteen (15) days of Substantial Completion. 

5. Substantial Completion. “Substantial Completion” is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work may be used by 
Owner for its intended purpose (as distinguished from the date of Owner’s acceptance thereof), notwithstanding any Punch List 
Work. If Contractor and Owner are unable to agree upon whether Substantial Completion has been achieved, the Work shall be 
deemed “Substantially Complete” as of the earlier of i) the date Owner receives from Contractor all necessary permits, certificates 
or licenses in order for Owner to use the Work and ii) the date of the Contractor’s last item of work at the Property. 
6. Punch List Work. Upon Substantial Completion of the Work,  Contractor and Owner shall inspect the Work. If such inspection 
discloses actual and legitimate incomplete or defective items of Work, Contractor and Owner shall prepare and sign a list of these 
items (“Punch List”). Contractor shall assign an estimated value for each item on the Punch List. Owner may only withhold from 
the Final Payment an amount equal to the total assigned value of all Punch List items (“Punch List Holdback”) and Owner shall be 
required to pay the full balance of the Contract Price, including all retainage, less the Punch List Holdback amount upon Substantial 
Completion. Upon completion of Punch List Work, Owner shall immediately pay the Punch List Holdback amount to Contractor.  
Contractor shall not be required to complete any of the Punch List Work if Owner withholds more than the Punch List Holdback 
amount from the Final Payment and any such action will constitute a breach of this Agreement.  
7. Inspections. If Owner determines that tests or inspections in addition to those required to be performed by Contractor are 
necessary, then Owner will give Contractor timely notice for the same to be performed. Owner will pay any expense related to 
such tests and/or inspections, including the costs related to uncovering or restoring the tested and/or inspected Work.  
8. Compliance with Laws.  Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.  If Contractor performs 
Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public 
authorities, Contractor shall be responsible for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to all corrections. 
9. Change Orders. Contractor and Owner may from time to time agree to changes in the Work, or additional work beyond the 
Work stated in Exhibit A. In such event, the Contractor and Owner shall agree upon the resulting increase or decrease, if any, in 
the Contract Price and shall prepare and sign a written change order (“Change Order”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Owner 
gives Contractor verbal or e-mail approval to make changes to the Work prior to signing a Change Order, Owner shall be deemed 
to have consented to the Change Order and to the applicable increase or decrease, if any, in the Contract Price. No alterations, 



additions, or small changes may be made by Owner in the Work or method of the performance of the Work without a written 
Change Order signed by Contractor. All Change Orders shall become part of this Agreement. Owner’s selection of color as required 
under Section 6(a) of Exhibit A shall be made in writing and shall be deemed final. If Owner requests change of color after 
providing its selection to Contractor, Owner shall be responsible for all additional costs incurred by Contractor as a result of such 
request and Owner shall execute a corresponding Change Order for such costs.   
10. Excusable Delays.  Contractor shall not be liable for delays caused by or contributed to by Change Orders, labor shortages, 
labor disputes, subcontractor unavailability, fire, fuel or material shortages or unavailability, unusual delays in transportation, 
unforeseen site conditions, unavoidable casualties, strikes, acts of God or terrorism, the public enemy, governmental restrictions 
or actions, the act or neglect of Owner, its agents or employees or contractors, including, without limitation, Owner’s failure to 
make timely payment as and when required by this Agreement , and Owner’s failure to make selections in a timely fashion, action 
or non-action of public utilities or of local, state or federal governments effecting the progress of the Work, inclement weather, or 
other causes beyond Contractor’s control.  And all such occurrences shall entitle Contractor to a commensurate and equitable 
increase to the Contract Price and such increase shall be recorded in a Change Order.  
11. Material Price Increases. Owner and Contractor acknowledge that in certain cases it is not possible to control pricing for, 
availability of, or the time for delivery of certain materials necessary for performance of the Work. If the costs of such materials 
increase by more than ten percent (10%) over the costs used to generate the Contract Price through no fault of Contractor, then 
the Contract Price shall be increased by any such increase beyond the costs used to generate the Contract Price.  
12. Owner Direct Work. Any construction or operations on the Property outside the scope of Work and done with Owner’s own 
forces or other contractors hired by Owner (“Owner Direct Work”) shall be performed in such a manner and at such time as will 
not interfere with or delay Contractor’s Work. If Owner Direct Work delay’s Contractor’s Work, Contractor shall be entitle Contractor 
to a commensurate and equitable extension increase to the Contract Price. Owner Direct Work will not be covered by Contractor’s 
warranty and Contractor shall not be responsible for correcting Owner Direct Work.   
13. Warranty. 

a. Express Workmanship Warranty. Contractor warrants to Owner that: 
i. materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will be of good quality and new unless Exhibit A requires or 

permits otherwise; and  
ii. the Work will conform to the requirements of the Exhibit A and will be free from defects, except for those inherent in 

the quality of the Work the Exhibit A require or permit.   
b. Work, materials, or equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective.  Contractor’s warranty 
excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by Contractor, improper or 
insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage.  If required by Owner, Contractor 
shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. The express warranty detailed in this 
Section 13 shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion and shall extend for the period set forth in Exhibit A 
(“Warranty Period”).   
c. Manufacturer Warranties.  To the extent reasonably possible, Contractor shall pass through to Owner all manufacturers' 
product warranties applicable to components of the Work, and notwithstanding anything contained herein, Contractor shall 
have no liability and gives no warranty for any item covered by a manufacturers' product warranty passed on to Owner.  
Owner’s sole recourse in connection with any product or material defects shall be to directly pursue the manufacturer under 
its warranty. 
d. Owner Acknowledgement. Owner acknowledges and agrees that Contractor informed Owner of various options 
regarding available methods and components for the construction, repair, and/or replacement of the Owner’s property, along 
with manufacturer specifications and pricing for such methods and products, prior to the Owner’s ultimate selection of the 
Work. Owner further acknowledges and agrees that Contractor informed Owner of the consequences that are likely to occur 
upon Owner’s selection of certain lower cost methods or components (i.e. resurfacing only vs. replacement), including the 
reappearance of existing cracks, etc. Any such consequences shall not be deemed warranty items and Owner waives all 
claims related to such consequences.   

14. Insurance.  Contractor shall at its own expense, maintain and carry the insurance coverages and limits as described in 
Exhibit B during the term of this Agreement and at all times that Contractor performs Work.  Owner shall maintain a Builder’s Risk 
insurance policy covering the Property and the Work in the amounts stated in Exhibit B and shall provide Contractor with a 
Certificate of Insurance evidencing such coverage. 
15. Risk of Loss.  The risk of loss related to the Work or the materials or equipment to installed or incorporated as part of the 
Work shall pass to Owner upon completion of the Work or delivery of the materials or equipment to the Property. 
16. Attorneys’ Fees.  Contractor shall be entitled to recover from Owner and Owner shall pay, all attorneys’ fees, costs, employee 
time, and disbursements Contractor incurs in enforcing or protecting its rights under this Agreement. 
17. Hazardous Concealed or Unknown Materials and Conditions.  Contractor is only responsible for hazardous or unsuitable 
materials and conditions stated in Exhibit A. If Contractor encounters a hazardous, concealed, or unknown materials or conditions 
not addressed Exhibit A, Contractor shall, upon recognizing the materials or condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area 
and report the material or condition to Owner in writing.  When the material or condition has been rendered harmless or the 
unsuitable materials or conditions have been removed and replaced, all at Owner’s sole expense, the Work in the affected area 
shall resume.  
18. Termination. 

a. Owner’s Termination.  Owner may terminate this Agreement if Contractor: 
i. Defaults in the performance of any material provision herein and fails to cure such default within fifteen (15) days of 

receiving written notice from Owner of such default.   
ii. Repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations or lawful orders of a public 

authority; or 
iii. Has otherwise breached a provision of this Agreement. 

b. Contractor’s Termination.  Contractor may cease Work and terminate this Agreement if Owner fails to make payment 
as required under this Agreement or if Owner has otherwise breached a provision of this Agreement. 



19. Waiver of Consequential Damages. Owner hereby waives all claims against Contractor for consequential damages arising 
out of or relating to this Contract. This waiver includes, without limitation, damages incurred by Owner for losses of use, income, 
profit, and diminution in value.  
20. Force Majeure. Contractor shall not be liable or responsible to the Owner, nor be deemed to have defaulted under or breached 
this Agreement, for any failure or delay in fulfilling or performing any term of this Agreement, when and to the extent such failure 
or delay is caused by or results from acts beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control, including, the following force majeure events 
(“Force Majeure Events”): (a) acts of God; (b) flood, fire, earthquake, or explosion; (c) war, invasion, hostilities (whether war is 
declared or not), terrorist threats or acts, riot or other civil unrest; (d) order or action by any governmental authority or requirements 
of law; (e) embargoes or blockades in effect on or after the date of this Agreement; and (f) national or regional emergency; and 
(g) strikes, labor stoppages or slowdowns, or other industrial disturbances; and (h) telecommunication breakdowns, power outages 
or shortages, lack of warehouse or storage space, inadequate transportation services, or inability or delay in obtaining supplies of 
adequate or suitable materials; and (i) other events beyond the reasonable control of the Contractor. 
21. Miscellaneous 

a. Governing Law.  This contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota. 
b. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including all Exhibits, expresses the entire agreement between the Parties and 
supersedes all previous understandings and oral representations by the Parties, their employees or agents, there being no 
representations, warranties, or other agreements, oral or written, not expressly set forth or provided for therein. 
c. Assignment.  This Agreement shall not be assigned unless both Parties consent to such assignment in writing and prior 
to any such assignment taking place. 
d. No Waiver.  No failure by either Party to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right or remedy hereunder shall operate 
as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy hereunder preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy granted hereby or by any related document or by law. 
e. Authority to Sign. Each individual signing this Agreement directly and expressly warrants that they have been given and 
have received and accepted authority to sign and execute this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom it is indicated that 
they have signed, and further has been given and received and accepted authority to enter into a binding agreement on behalf 
of such Party with respect to the matters contained herein and as stated herein.  
f. Notices.  Any written notice which may be or is required to be given pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement shall 
be deemed sufficient if delivered or sent by electronic mail (“E-mail”), personal delivery, or certified mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested, to the address listed herein.  Notices given by E-mail shall be deemed delivered on the date they 
were transmitted if transmitted by 6:00 p.m. Central Time.  Notices given by E-mail after 6:00 p.m. Central Time shall be 
deemed delivered the day following the day of transmission.   Notices given by personal delivery shall be deemed delivered 
on the date the personal delivery is made.  Notices by certified mail shall be deemed delivered two (2) business days after 
the date of mailing.  Any notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows: 

 
If to Owner:         If to Contractor:  
 
City of Cologne     Upper Midwest Athletic Construction, Inc. 
1211 Village Parkway,    3017 161st Ave NW, 
Cologne, MN 55322    Andover, MN 55304 
Attn: Michelle M Morrison    Attn: Eric Hicks 
952-466-2064     763-753-1127 
michellem@colognemn.com    eric@umathleticconstruction.com  

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, through their duly authorized representatives, have executed this Construction Contract 
effective as of the Effective Date. 
 
City of Cologne      Upper Midwest Athletic Construction, Inc. 
 
By:                 By:      
Name: Michelle M Morrison     Name: Eric Hicks  
Its: City Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer   Its: President 
    



 

 
EXHIBIT A 

Work 

 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Insurance Coverage and Limits 
 

Commercial General Liability:   
 

 Each Occurrence  
Aggregate 

Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined $1,000,000 $2,000,000 
Personal Injury $1,000,000 $2,000,000 
Damage to Rented Premises $     50,000 --- 
Medical Expenses (Any One Person) $       5,000 --- 
Products-Completed Operations $1,000,000 $2,000,000 

 

Automobile Liability:  To include all owned autos (private passenger and other than private passenger), hired and non-owned 
auto. 

 Each Occurrence  
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined $500,000  

 
Excess Liability:  To include all owned autos (private passenger and other than private passenger), hired and non-owned auto. 

 
 Each Occurrence  

Aggregate 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined $1,000,000 $1,000,000 

 
Workers’ Compensation:  To include Coverage A as required by statute and Coverage B as follows: 
 

Each Accident $500,000 
Disease – Each Employee $500,000 
Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

 
 

















CITY OF COLOGNE 
RESOLUTION NO. 25-09 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DONATION 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Cologne, Minnesota, is generally authorized to accept donations of real 
and personal property pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 for the benefit of its citizens, and is 
specifically authorized to accept gifts and bequests for the benefit of the City of Cologne and its citizens 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 471.17; and 

 
WHEREAS, The following persons and entities have offered to contribute the cash amounts set 

forth below to the City: 
 

Name of Donor  Amount 
Faye & Dallas Schneider  $200.00  

     
 

WHEREAS,  Faye & Dallas Schneider are donating funds to the City of Cologne Fire Department 
for general expenditures; 

 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that this is appropriate, and the City will accept this 

donation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLOGNE, 
MINNESOTA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. The donation described above is accepted and shall be used for the purposes described. 
2. The City Administrator is hereby directed to issue receipts to each donor acknowledging 

the City’s receipt of the donor’s donation. 
 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Cologne, Minnesota on Monday  April 7,  2025. 
 

Approved: 
 
 

Matt Lein 
Mayor 

Attested: 
 
 

 

Michelle Morrison 
City Administrator 

 
M/   

 
 

Lein   

 
 

Szaroletta   

 
 

Bowers   

 

S/   Bruss   Olson   



H:\COLO\0C1130670\1_Corres\C_To Others\2025-04-01 North Tower Award.docx 

 

 
April 1, 2025          
 
 
City of Cologne 
Attn: Michelle Morrison 
1211 Village Parkway 
Cologne, MN  55322 
 
 
RE: North Water Tower Rehabilitation  

Construction Contract Award Recommendation 
  
Dear Mrs. Morrison: 
 
Below is a tabulation of bids received on March 25, 2025, for the above-referenced project. 
Six bids were received ranging from a low bid of $573,500 to a high bid of $896,500.  The low 
bid was submitted by TanksCo, INC from Decatur, Texas.  Below is a tabulation of the bids 
received. 
 

CONTRACTOR BID AMOUNT 

TanksCo, INC $573,500.00 
O & J Coatings, Inc. $643,500.00 
Viking Industrial Painting, LLC $646,696.00 
J. R. Stelzer Co. $769,260.00 
Classic Protective Coatings, Inc. $873,850.00 
TMI Coatings, Inc. $896,500.00 

 
 

Evaluation of the bids indicates the bidding process was competitive. The low bid submitted 
was 36 percent below the high bid amount.  TanksCo, INC has successfully completed projects 
of this type in the past and thereby has shown itself to be a responsible contractor.  Based on 
the items above, we recommend the City award a contract in the amount of $573,500.00 to 
TanksCo, INC.  Coordination with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is ongoing for 
the grant funds allocated through its Community Grants Program.  It is recommended to 
award this contract contingent on executing a grant agreement and receiving confirmation of 
the funding from the EPA.  If approved, please sign and return the enclosed Notice of Award 
document. 
 



City of Cologne 
April 1, 2025 
Page 2 
 

H:\COLO\0C1130670\1_Corres\C_To Others\2025-04-01 North Tower Award.docx 

 

 
I am open to discussing this project or answering any questions you or the City Council may 
have. 
 
Sincerely, 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
 
 
 
Jake S. Saulsbury, P.E. 
Senior Principal 
 
 
cc: Chris Wolfgram, Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
 Ryan Johnson, Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
 
 
Enclosure: Notice of Award 



This document is a MODIFIED version of EJCDC® C 510, Copyright© 2018 by NSPE, ACEC, and ASCE. All rights reserved. 
City of Cologne, Minnesota - 0C1.130670 NOTICE OF AWARD 
North Water Tower Rehabilitation  PAGE 00 51 00-1 

 

NOTICE OF AWARD 

Date of Issuance: April 7, 2025 
Owner: City of Cologne, Minnesota Owner’s Project No.:  
Engineer: Bolton & Menk, Inc. Engineer’s Project No.: 0C1.130670 
Project: North Water Tower Rehabilitation 
Contract Name:  
Bidder: TanksCo, INC 

Bidder’s Address: 1102 County Road 4360, Decatur, TX  76234 

You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated 03/25/2025 for the above Contract, and that you are the 
Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for: 

 Water Tower Reconditioning 

The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is $573,500.00. Contract Price is subject to adjustment based on the 
provisions of the Contract, including but not limited to those governing changes, Unit Price Work, and Work 
performed on a cost-plus-fee basis, as applicable. 

Four (4) unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one copy of the Contract 
Documents accompanies this Notice of Award or has been transmitted or made available to Bidder electronically. 

 Drawings will be delivered separately from the other Contract Documents. 

You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this Notice of 
Award: 

1. Deliver to Owner four (4) counterparts of the Agreement, signed by Bidder (as Contractor). 

2. Deliver with the signed Agreement(s) the Contract security (such as required performance and payment 
bonds) and insurance documentation, as specified in the Instructions to Bidders and in the General 
Conditions, Articles 2 and 6. 

3. Deliver to Owner executed Section 00 51 11 “ADDITIONAL SUBCONTRACTORS LIST” in accordance with Minn. 
Stat. 16C.285 subd.3 Subclauses (1) to (7).  Delivery is a condition precedent to execution of this contract and 
failure to submit this form shall be cause for the Owner to cancel Award of Contract and declare your Bid 
security forfeited. 

4. Other conditions precedent (if any):  None. 

Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, annul 
this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited. 

Within 10 days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully signed counterpart of 
the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in Paragraph 2.02 of the 
General Conditions. 

Owner: City of Cologne, Minnesota 

By (signature):  

Name (printed): Michelle Morrison 

Title: City Administrator 
Copy: Engineer



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Matt Lein & City Council Members 
FROM: Michelle Morrison, City Administrator 
SUBJECT:  UPDATE EMPLOYEE REFERENCE MANUAL 
DATE: 4/3/2025 

The state mandated that employers adopt an ESST policy by 12.31.2024.  Our Personnel 
Attorney, Kelly Dohm at Melchert, provided us a manual that met the state mandate and 
it was adopted at a special meeting by the end of the year in 2024.  The original ESST 
state mandate included seasonal, temporary and volunteer fire personnel.  These 
mandates have since changed - thus the update.   

At that adoption, the Personnel Committee also revised language adding a $200 Stipend 
for On Call and intended to include language that allowed for management to control 
overtime and doubletime that was occurring when an employee was on call.  That 
section needs clarification to achieve that objective.  I have reviewed the proposed 
changes with both Mayor Lein and Councilmember Bruss, as they were the personnel 
committee when these changes were made and most familiar with why we were making 
the changes, they both agree with the new language.  Below is the email content that I 
sent to them that describes the changes: 

“In addition to the clean up of  ESST language, there are two other changes for you to 
consider: 

Call Time and $200 Stipend:  See pages 21 -23.   Public Works staff need to do 
"rounds" daily - this consists of checking all the lift stations to make sure they are 
functioning properly.  Staff who cover rounds over the weekend were paid 3 hours of 
overtime for Saturday rounds and 3 hours of double time on Sundays.  The 2024 edit 
was intended to change that practice.  The work week begins on Saturday - the 6 hours 
covering rounds were to be counted towards the 40 hour work week and management 
was going to be allowed to dismiss the employee once they hit the 40 hour work mark 
for the week - allowing us to control overtime and double time payroll costs.  The $200 
stipend was added to "compensate" the employee for the "inconvenience" of having to 
be on call for the weekend.  The way this was written in December 2024 did not 
accomplish this…. I have discussed this with Matt and his recollection is the same as 
mine, that the change was made in 2024 with the intent to allow management to control 
payroll costs when possible and to compensate employees for perceived inconvenience 



2 

of having to cover the weekend rounds.  I believe the edits on pages 21-23 accomplish 
this goal.   

Addition of Deferred Compensation in Liew of Health Insurance.  This is new 
language that just puts into writing what the practice has been since before I was hired 
here in  2017.  As I understand it, when an employee was hired several years ago, they 
did not need to take our insurance as their spouse had family coverage with their job.   
As you  know, the City offers 100% paid health insurance for employees.  Because the 
City did not have to pay for this employee’s insurance, there was a perception that all 
the other employees were getting a benefit that they weren’t.  The agreement that was 
made with a previous administrator was that an amount equal to the single HSA 
Contribution would be put into a deferred compensation account.  I've added language 
in the manual to make that official.  I don't disagree with the practice as the City is still 
saving $ as we have no expense for the health insurance premium.” 

I’ve attached the red lined pages from the manual addressing these changes. 

Recommend approval of the April 2025 Employee Manual. 



21 

Pay Days  

The City workweek is calculated on a seven (7) day cycle that begins on Saturday and ends on 
the following Friday. 

The City shall exclusively use 14-day pay periods. 

An employee is to fill out his/her own timecard with a description of daily duties started and 
completed and sign it. 

The Department Head or Supervisor is to review the timecard and approve it with his/her 
signature. 

Any delays in turning in the timecard and/or if not properly signed, will result in delay in issuing 
of checks. 

The City shall be on a two-week pay period. 

When the two-week pay period ends on Friday, the department heads shall turn in their own and 
their employees’ timecards the following Monday morning. Their checks shall be prepared and 
ready for distribution by the following Tuesday morning. If distribution falls on a holiday, it will 
be available the next business day. 

Administrative Pay Corrections 

The City takes all reasonable steps to ensure that employees receive the correct amount of pay in 
each paycheck and that employees are paid promptly on the scheduled payday. 

In the unlikely event that there is an error in the amount of pay, the employee should promptly 
bring the discrepancy to the attention of the Payroll Department. Corrections will be processed in 
the following pay period. 

Call Time 

An employee called to duty during his/her scheduled off duty will be guaranteed a minimum of 
two hours of call out time. The employee will may have this time applied toward his/her 40-hour 
work week schedule. At the point the employee reaches 40 hours, the employee will may be 
released for the remainder of the workweek, unless additional work is required by a department 
head or supervisor. Any hours over 40 shall be considered overtime. Employees required to work 
on call on a weekend on both Saturday and Sunday will be required to work a 46-hour 
workweek. All hours worked over 40 hours in the given workweek on call on Saturday and 
Sunday will be paid at the overtime rate of time and a half.  

Commencing January 1, 2024, both exempt and non-exempt employees regularly scheduled to 
work on a weekend on Saturday and Sunday (preforming rounds) will be paid an additional 
$200.00 stipend for being scheduled to work on the weekend in addition to their salaried pay or 
hourly pay as a non-exempt employee.  The preforming of rounds will include a minimum of 3 
hours. and in addition to overtime hours which may be incurred in any given workweek for non-
exempt employees.  The employee will have this time applied toward his/her 40-hour work week 
schedule. At the point the employee reaches 40 hours, the employee will be released for the 
remainder of the workweek, unless additional work is required by a department head or 



22 

supervisor. Any hours over 40 shall be considered overtime. 

Holiday Time 
An employee required to work on a holiday shall be paid at the hourly rate of double time for all 
hours worked on the holiday. 

Wage Disclosure Protection 

The City shall not: 

1. Require nondisclosure by an employee of his or her wages as a condition of employment.
2. Require an employee to sign a waiver or other document which purports to deny an

employee the right to disclose the employee’s wages; or
3. Take any adverse employment action against an employee for disclosing the employee’s

own wages or discussing another employee’s wages, which have been disclosed
voluntarily.

Nothing in this policy shall be construed to: 

1. Create an obligation on the City or an employee to disclose wages.
2. Permit an employee, without the written consent of the City, to disclose proprietary

information, trade secret information, or information that is otherwise subject to a legal
privilege or protected by law.

3. Diminish any existing rights under the National Labor Relations Act under United States
Code, Title 29; or

4. Permit the employee to disclose wage information of other employees to a competitor of
the City.

The City shall not discharge, discipline, penalize, interfere with, threaten, restrain, coerce, or 
otherwise retaliate or discriminate against an employee for asserting rights or remedies under this 
policy. 

An employee may bring a civil action against the City for a violation of this policy. If a court 
finds that the City has violated this policy, the court may order reinstatement, back pay, 
restoration of lost service credit, if appropriate, and the expungement of any related adverse 
records of an employee who was the subject of the violation. 

SECTION 20 – TIMEKEEPING 

Accurately recording time worked is the responsibility of every non-exempt employee. Federal 
and State laws require the City to keep an accurate record of time worked in order to calculate 
employee pay and benefits. Time worked is all the time actually spent on the job performing 
assigned duties. 

Non-exempt employees should accurately record the time they begin and end their work, as well 
as the beginning and ending time of each meal period. All hourly employees are required to 
record the time taken for their break/meal period. Any exceptions must be preapproved by the 
employee’s City Administrator/Clerk. They should also record the beginning and ending time of 
any split shift or departure from work for personal reasons. Overtime work must always be 
approved by the City Administrator/Clerk before it is performed. 



23 

Altering, falsifying, tampering with time records, or recording time on another employee's time 
record may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

Non-exempt employees should report to work no more than 15 minutes prior to their scheduled 
starting time nor stay more than 15 minutes after their scheduled stop time without express, prior 
authorization from the City Administrator/Clerk. 

SECTION 21 – OVERTIME AND STIPEND OF $200.00 

When operating requirements or other needs cannot be met during regular working hours, 
employees may be given the opportunity to volunteer for overtime work assignments. All 
employees interested in working overtime work must receive prior authorization. Overtime 
assignments will be distributed as equitably as practical to all employees qualified to perform the 
required work. 

Overtime compensation is paid to all non-exempt employees at a rate of time and a half of the 
employee’s hourly wage. Overtime pay is based on actual hours worked which exceed 40 hours 
of work per week. 

Employees who work overtime without receiving prior authorization from the City 
Administrator/Clerk may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including possible 
termination of employment. 

Department heads and supervisors will make every effort to limit overtime to emergency 
situations only. 

Eligibility for overtime hours does not commence until after 40 hours are worked in a given 
workweek. Overtime rate of pay shall not be paid at the beginning of the workweek. Since the 
workweek of the City commences each week on Saturday, employees will not be eligible to be 
paid overtime at the rate of time and a half until after 40 hours of work in that given workweek 
which 40 hours likely would not be worked until Friday of any given workweek. In such 
instances, employees must seek approval from their supervisor prior to working over 40 hours in 
the given workweek prior to incurring overtime hours. 

SECTION 22 – SAFE HARBOR 

The City will pay exempt employees their full salary for any week in which they perform any 
work, except for the following circumstances: 

 Absences for personal reasons other than sickness or disability of a day or more.

 Absences of a day or more due to sickness or disability, if the deduction is made in
accordance with a bona fide policy, plan, or program of providing compensation for
salary lost to sickness or disability.

 Offsets for any amounts received as jury fees, witness fees, or military pay.

 Penalties imposed for infractions of safety rules of major significance.

 Disciplinary suspensions for infractions of workplace conduct rules; and

 First or last week of employment.



29 

Flexible Benefits Plan 

The City has a Health Savings Account (HSA) plan. 

An employee on an individual HDHP plan receives $3,100.00 a year into an HSA (prorated 
monthly). 

An employee on the family HDHP plan receives $3,875.00 a year into an HSA (prorated 
monthly). 

Deferred Compensation in Lieu of Health Insurance 
The City recognizes that an employee that chooses alternative health insurance coverage through 
a spouse provides a savings to the City in Health Insurance Premium expense.   In Lieu of paying 
100% of Health Insurance Premiums and HSA contributions, the city will make a deposit into a 
Minnesota Deferred Compensation Plan account in the employee’s name.  The amount will be 
the same as an individual employee HDHP plan benefit which is currently $3,100 a year prorated 
monthly. 

SECTION 28 – EARNED SICK AND SAFE TIME 

Employees, including temporary, seasonal, Ffull-time and part-time employees, as well as 
volunteer firefighters who perform work for at least 80 hours in a year for the City are provided 
with earned sick and safe time (ESST) in accordance with this policy. Full-time and part-time 
employees will be frontloaded 48 hours of ESST as of January 1st each calendar year. Unused 
ESST for these employees will be paid out as of December 31st for each calendar year. For all 
other employees, including volunteer firefighters and temporary or seasonal employees, ESST 
will accrue one hour for every 30 hours worked. Accrued, but unused, ESST hours may be 
carried over into the next calendar year for these employees up to a maximum of 80 hours. 
Unused ESST hours will be forfeited and will be unpaid at the time of any employee’s separation 
from employment, whether the separation is voluntary or involuntary. 

Definitions 
For purposes of this policy, “family member” means: 1) an employee’s (i) child, foster child, 
adult child, legal ward, child for whom the employee is legal guardian, or child to whom the 
employee stands or stood in loco parentis; (ii) spouse or registered domestic partner; (iii) sibling, 
stepsibling, or foster sibling; (iv) biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or a person 
who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; (v) grandchild, foster 
grandchild, or step grandchild; (vi) grandparent or step grandparent; (vii) a child of a sibling of 
the employee; (viii) a sibling of the parents of the employee; or (ix) a child-in-law or sibling-in-
law; (2) any of the family members listed in clause (1) of a spouse or registered domestic 
partner; (3) any other individual related by blood or whose close association with the employee 
is the equivalent of a family relationship; and (4) up to one individual annually designated by the 
employee. 

For purposes of this policy, “health care professional” means any person licensed, certified, or 
otherwise authorized under federal or state law to provide medical or emergency services, 
including doctors, physician assistants, nurses, advanced practice registered nurses, mental health 
professionals, and emergency room personnel. “Sexual assault” means an act that constitutes a 
violation under sections 609.342 to 609.3453 or 609.352 of the Minnesota statutes. “Stalking” 



City of Cologne
2024 Financial Statement Audit



Introduction
• Audit Results
• General Fund Results
• Other Governmental Funds
• Enterprise Funds
• Key Performance Indicators

2



Unmodified Audit Opinion 
- Control Findings Noted 

on Next Slide

3

Audit Results

Minnesota Legal 
ComplianceAuditor’s Opinion

No Instances of 
Noncompliance Noted



Audit Results 
2024 Audit Findings
• Preparation of Financial Statements

• Internal Control Finding - Significant Deficiency

• Limited Segregation of Duties
• Internal Control Finding - Significant Deficiency

• Internal Controls – Payroll Processing
• Internal Control Finding - Significant Deficiency

• Quarterly Reports and Monitoring
• Internal Control Finding - Significant Deficiency

4



Auditor Recommendations
Policies and Procedures
• Limited policies and procedures are kept on file/provided to 

auditors related to finance. Absent policies, it is more likely that 
processes to account for operations are inefficient, especially in 
time of turnover.  

• We recommend the City continue to create and adopt written 
financial policies and procedures to be approved by the City 
Council.

• Examples of financial policies include purchasing, electronic funds 
transfers, capital asset, fund balance, and internal control policies.

• We recommend current policies and procedures be revised to 
ensure proper reconciling and monitoring procedures are in place 
for future processing of payroll.

• We recommend that City Council formally receive and closely 
review report quarterly at a minimum, including budget verse 
actual as well as cash balances for each fund compared to the 
previous quarter.

5



Auditor Recommendations 
(Continued)
Capital Improvement or Equipment Fund
• Consider creating and utilizing a Capital 

Projects or Equipment fund to account for 
capital related purchases.

• In review of the General Fund balance on 
future slides, inclusion of capital purchases 
and resources makes it challenging to 
determine the health and budget status of 
the General fund. 

6



7

General Fund Reserves 

Note: The City has a policy to maintain a minimum of 50% unassigned fund balance in the General fund. 

227.2%

166.7% 148.8%

175.2%

181.2%

$1,291,415 
$1,403,604 

$1,630,121 $1,716,310 $1,811,859 

112%

50%
50% 50% 50%

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

 Total Fund Balance  Budget  Unassigned Fund Balance



8

General Fund Budget to Actual
Final

Budgeted Actual Variance with
Amounts Amounts Final Budget

Revenues 1,716,310$   2,001,234$   284,924$      
Expenditures 1,716,310     1,731,092     (14,782)          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                       270,142         270,142         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of capital assets -                       5,175              5,175              

Net Change in Fund Balances -                       275,317         275,317         

Fund Balances, January 1 3,007,033     3,007,033     -                       

Fund Balances, December 31 3,007,033$   3,282,350$   275,317$      



9

General Fund Revenues and 
Expenditures by Type

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 Taxes  Intergovernmental  Charges for
Services

 Other

2022 2023 2024

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 General
Government

 Public Safety  Public Works  Culture and
Recreation

 Capital
Outlay

 Other

2022 2023 2024



10

Other 
Funds – 
TIF District 
and Debt 
Service

Total Total Bonds Maturity
Cash Assets Outstanding Date

2013 G.O Refunding Bonds (Abatement) 2,515,000$     2033
2013 G.O Refunding Bonds (Street) 1,725,000        2029
2018A G.O Equipment Certificates 409,000           2028
2020A G.O Bonds 2,725,000        2041
2021A G.O Bonds (Abatement) 160,000           2031
2021A G.O Bonds (Equipment) 190,000           2032
2023A G.O. Bonds (Improvement) 2,610,000        2044

Total 800,640$      1,449,664$   9,762,000$     

Total Remaining Interest Payments 2,265,752$     

Debt Service Fund

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034

Principal Interest

Increase
2023 2024 (Decrease)

Nonmajor
TIF 2-1 2,328$           3,234$           906$              

Capital Projects Fund
December 31,

Fund Balances 



11

Water 
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

 $1,000,000

2021 2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2024

Operating Receipts Operating Disbursements Debt Payments

$326,735 

$185,765 

$88,277 
$(147,414)

 $(200,000)

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

2021 2022 2023 2024

Total Cash
Minimum Target Balance (Following Year Debt Service Plus 50% of Operating Costs)

We recommend the 
City complete a formal 
review of Utility rates 
to ensure resources are 
sufficient to cover costs 
in future years.



12

Sewer 
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

2021 2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2024

Operating Receipts Operating Disbursements Debt Payments

$519,580 

$711,731 

$101,152 

$609,369 

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

2021 2022 2023 2024

Total Cash
Minimum Target Balance (Following Years Debt Service Plus 50% of Operating Costs)

We recommend the 
City complete a formal 
review of Utility rates 
to ensure resources are 
sufficient to cover costs 
in future years.



13

Stormwater
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances

$265,574 

$136,093 

$79,605 

$36,119 

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

2021 2022 2023 2024

Total Cash
Minimum Target Balance (Following Years Debt Service Plus 50% of Operating Costs)

 $-

 $10,000

 $20,000

 $30,000

 $40,000

 $50,000

 $60,000

 $70,000

 $80,000

 $90,000

2021 2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2024

Operating Receipts Operating Disbursements Debt Payments

We recommend the 
City complete a formal 
review of Utility rates 
to ensure resources are 
sufficient to cover costs 
in future years.



14

Cash and Investments Balances 

$4,166,848 
$4,021,648 

$4,176,961 

$4,606,459 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000

2021 2022 2023 2024

 General Fund  Capital Funds  Debt Service Funds  Enterprise Funds



15

Taxes
Key Performance Indicators

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Class 4 Cities 58.8% 57.6% 58.1% N/A N/A
Cities in Carver County 52.3% 52.5% 52.1% N/A N/A
City of Cologne 63.7% 63.4% 64.6% 53.9% 58.2%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%
Tax Rate

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Class 4 Cities $606 $630 $664 N/A N/A
Cities in Carver County $636 $644 $668 N/A N/A
City of Cologne $769 $740 $790 $835 $858

 $-
 $100
 $200
 $300
 $400
 $500
 $600
 $700
 $800
 $900

 $1,000
Taxes Per Capita



16

Debt
Key Performance Indicators

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Class 4 Cities $2,150 $2,198 $2,195 N/A N/A
Cities in Carver County $2,835 $3,078 $2,948 N/A N/A
City of Cologne $9,960 $9,567 $9,021 $9,758 $8,960

 $-

 $2,000

 $4,000

 $6,000

 $8,000

 $10,000

 $12,000
Debt Per Capita

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Class 4 Cities 13.4% 13.4% 12.54% N/A N/A
Cities in Carver County 19.3% 16.6% 15.70% N/A N/A
City of Cologne 14.1% 19.0% 28.1% 16.7% 33.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

Debt Service Expenditures as a Percent of 
Total Expenditures



17

Expenditures
Key Performance Indicators

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Class 4 Cities $839 $856 $901 N/A N/A
Cities in Carver County $679 $609 $690 N/A N/A
City of Cologne $785 $677 $780 $942 $601

 $-
 $100
 $200
 $300
 $400
 $500
 $600
 $700
 $800
 $900

 $1,000
Current Expenditures Per Capita

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Class 4 Cities $558 $527 $536 N/A N/A
Cities in Carver County $489 $581 $394 N/A N/A
City of Cologne $1,264 $644 $117 $1,102 $224

 $-

 $200

 $400

 $600

 $800

 $1,000

 $1,200

 $1,400

Capital Expenditures Per Capita



18

Your Abdo Team

Justin Nilson, CPA
Partner

justin.nilson@abdosolutions.com

John Stachel, CPA
Senior Associate

john.stachel@abdosolutions.com

Robbie Smith
Associate

robbie.smith@abdosolutions.com

Katie Hoffman
Intern

katie.hoffman@abdosolutions.com



 
Memo 

To: Mayor Lein and Council Members 

From: Michelle Morrison – City Administrator 

  

Date: March 14, 2025 

Re: Administrator Update  

 

In addition to items presented in the packet please see the following notes of interest: 

 
• Working with Brian and Upper Midwest Athletic Construction on the resurfacing of the 

basketball court at Meadow Park – Upper Midwest is also working on an estimate for me to 
redo the tennis court at Veterans Park into 4 pickleball courts and one tennis court.   
 

• March Water bills went out with new rates.  Received 4 calls from residents about the 
increased bill.   

 
 
As always, feel free to reach out with any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	April 7, 2025 City Council Packet
	1 City Council Agenda April 7, 2025
	2 March 17, 2025 City Council Minutes
	3 - AP
	April 07, 2025 Check Summary Register
	April 07, 2025 Check Detail Register

	4 25_03_25 Payroll Summary
	4 25_03_25 Payroll Summary
	Sheet1

	25_04_08 Payroll Summary
	Sheet1


	5 Meadow Park Basketball Court Contract
	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
	Automobile Liability:  To include all owned autos (private passenger and other than private passenger), hired and non-owned auto.
	Excess Liability:  To include all owned autos (private passenger and other than private passenger), hired and non-owned auto.
	Workers’ Compensation:  To include Coverage A as required by statute and Coverage B as follows:

	Each Occurrence
	Aggregate
	$2,000,000
	$1,000,000
	Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined
	$2,000,000
	$1,000,000
	Personal Injury
	---
	$     50,000
	Damage to Rented Premises
	---
	$       5,000
	Medical Expenses (Any One Person)
	$2,000,000
	$1,000,000
	Products-Completed Operations

	6 Haulers License Renewals-Consent Agenda Item
	7 Gambling Permit Lions May 17
	8 - Annual Liquor License
	Res No 25-09 Accepting Donation
	CITY OF COLOGNE RESOLUTION NO. 25-09
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLOGNE, MINNESOTA, AS FOLLOWS:
	M/

	9 2025-04-01 North Tower Award
	11 2024 FINAL Audit Presentation
	12  Administrator Update
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:


	Memo to Council  Manual
	Memo to Council  Manual
	Cologne Employee Reference Manual 04 2025




